

2021-2022 Student Handbook

Brooke Shea, Principal Jessica Furlong, Assistant Principal Intern Deanna Strickland, Assistant Principal Intern

A LETTER FROM WEBSTER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

On behalf of the Webster Elementary School family, welcome back to the 2021-2022 school year! We are extremely excited to kick start a new school year filled with endless opportunities for students to express their creativity, discover new ideas, and develop into responsible citizens.

Here at WES, our Vision and Mission are:

Vision: Webster Elementary School's vision is to empower students to work as a partnership with staff, parents, and community to discover their strengths and achieve their maximum potential.

Mission: Webster Elementary School, teachers, staff, students, parents, and community will work as a team to enable all children to reach their potential for future successes by instilling organizational foundations through rigorous based instruction by providing engaging experiences which will maximize the growth of each student and staff member in a safe, challenging environment necessary for college, careers, and life.

SCHOOL EXPENDITURES

Per full time Equivalent Student Direct School Expense 2019-2020: \$ 9,920.00

SCHOOL GRADE

2018-2019 WES School Grade = C

Please visit our school webpage and/or contact the school office for updated information regarding COVID-19 policies and procedures. Our school is working diligently to follow CDC and Health Department guidelines and recommendations to provide a safe, healthy environment for staff and students.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Arrival & Dismissal	4
Attendance	5
Buses	5
Discipline	6
Dress Code	8
Enrollment	9
Field Trips	9
Food Service	9
Grades	10
Health	10
Homebound Services	11
Homework	11
Honor Roll	11
Honors' Breakfast	11
Media Center	11
Moment of Silence	12
Parents	12
Pledge Reciting Policy	12
Physical Education	12
Safety	11
Student Property	13
Student Records	13
SCSB Non-Discrimination Statement	13
Textbooks	13
Volunteers	13

Arrival & Dismissal:

ARRIVAL

The regular school day is from 7:45 A.M. - 2:45 P.M. Children should arrive no earlier than 7:10 A.M. Teachers are not on duty prior to this time. Parents/guardians who transport their children mornings and/or afternoons must use the designated drop-off/pick-up areas, which open at 7:10 A.M. and close at 7:40 A.M. Students arriving before 7:40 A.M. will report to a designated area:

- Pre-K will report directly to classroom and will eat breakfast at 8am
- Auditorium (if eating breakfast): Kindergarten
- Gifted Room (if not eating breakfast):
- PE Pavilion: 1st grade
 Media Center: 2nd grade
- Ms. Haugabrook and Ms. Berry's Classrooms: 3rd grade
- Building 17 Breezeway: 4th grade
- Breezeway by the Front Office: 5th grade

For the safety of all of our children, it is imperative that neither the bus loop nor the staff parking be used to drop-off or pick-up students. When arriving late, please park and enter the office and follow the check-in procedures. The school has the check-in system procedures for parents to come check their child/children in. Please keep in mind that breakfast closes at 7:40 A.M. This allows instruction to begin promptly at 7:45 A.M. For the safety of all students and staff, NO CELL PHONE USE is allowed in the parent pick-up/drop-off areas.

BICYCLES

An area is provided for students to park and secure bicycles near the Parent Resource Center/Pre-Kindergarten-1st grade pick-up/drop-off. The school is NOT responsible for damage to or theft of any bicycle parked on campus. Students who ride bicycles to school should use locks. Locks are NOT provided by the school. Please ensure that your child wears a helmet when riding a bike to school – IT'S THE LAW!

DISMISSAL

At 2:45 P.M. school will dismiss. A student who walks should go directly home after dismissal. A student who is picked up by parents/guardians should go directly to the designated pick-up area. For safety reasons we request that parents/guardians use only the designated pick-up area in the afternoon. Supervision in the pick-up area will be provided from 2:45 P.M. – 3:05 P.M

PICK-UP & DROP-OFF AREAS

Car riders will use the south side loop of Webster Elementary. If students arrive after 7:40 A.M., parents will need to park and escort their child/children through the single point of entry. For the safety of all students and staff, NO CELL PHONE USE is allowed in the parent pick-up/drop-off areas.

VEHICLE TAGS

All vehicles picking up a child must use the provided "car rider tags" in the front windshield of the vehicle DAILY. Two of these will be provided to each family by the front office at no cost. Additional tags can be purchased for \$5.00. **Anyone who does not have a tag will be sent to the office and must present identification to pick-up a child**.

WALKING STUDENTS TO CLASS

Parents are encouraged to accompany NEW students to class for the first three (3) days at WES. After the first three (3) days, please use only the designated drop-off area for your child's arrival at school. Parents will be asked to allow their students to make their way to class or their early room on their own.

Attendance:

You can help your child be successful by assuring that he/she is present at school every day. When students are absent, valuable instructional time is lost and gaps in learning occur. Should your child need to be out of school, please send a note upon his/her return explaining the reason for the absence. Failure to submit a note within three days will result in an unexcused absence. To ensure compliance with state laws regarding school attendance, all unexcused absences are monitored by the school. A truancy officer may be utilized to intervene with families as unexcused absences accumulate. A doctor's excuse is required for every absence (excused or unexcused) on the tenth (10) absence and thereafter in a semester.

ABSENCES

Excused absences will be granted for personal illness, death of a member of the immediate family, recognized religious holidays, and for special emergencies approved by the school principal. Other prearranged absences that have been approved by the principal will be considered excused absences, however these absences will count towards the nine (9) or more days excused absences total. Again, absences on the tenth (10) day and beyond will require a physician's statement to be considered excused. Students MUST arrange for make-up work with his/her teacher(s) for all absences. One day for each day absent will be given to complete required work.

Unexcused absences include shopping trips, vacations or other absences taken without prior approval, pleasure trips or other avoidable absences, appointments for other family members, truancy, suspension or dismissal from school, and appointments without approval, except in cases of emergency. Assignments missed during an unexcused absence, unexcused tardy, unexcused early check-out, or out-of-school suspension will be entered at 50% of the grade earned during the absence. Assignments awarded a grade of "S", "N", or "U" will receive one grade lower than the grade earned. All missed course work will be provided for completion; however, unreturned work will be entered at a "0".

CHECKOUT POLICY

Unless the school has been notified by the parent/guardian that permission has been granted for someone else to pick up the child, a student will be released only to the parent/guardian. A parent/guardian must come to the office to check out a child. No checkouts will be permitted after 2:25 P.M. Attendance is important. When possible, please help your child by scheduling appointments after school hours.

TARDY POLICY

Every effort should be made to have children in the classroom on time. Class begins at 7:45 A.M. Any student arriving after 7:45 A.M. is tardy and must report to the school office for a tardy slip. Appropriate measures will be taken when tardiness is excessive.

UNEXCUSED TARDIES/UNEXCUSED CHECKOUTS

After five unexcused tardies have accrued, the student will receive an unexcused absence. Likewise, the fifth unexcused early checkout will become an unexcused absence. Throughout the year, each fifth unexcused tardy or fifth unexcused early checkout will become an unexcused absence.

Buses:

BUS CONDUCT

For the safety of all bus riders, it is necessary that every student follow bus rules and obey the bus driver. Rule infractions or disrespect to the driver will be reported to the parent/guardian and may result in a bus conduct report.

BUS RULES

Riding a bus to and from school is a privilege. Failure to abide by established bus rules will result in corrective action. The principal, assistant principal or designee has the authority to suspend and/or recommend expulsion of students from bus riding. All transported students:

- 1. Must be at the bus stop five (5) minutes before the scheduled arrival time;
- 2. Must obey all directions given by the driver;
- 3. Must occupy the seat assigned by the driver, must refrain at all times from moving around while the bus is in motion, and must, in cases where standing is necessary, stand in the area designated by the driver;
- 4. Must observe classroom conduct, except for ordinary conversation, while riding the bus;
- 5. Must observe proper rules of conduct and must stay off the road and private property while waiting for the bus;
- 6. Must wait until the bus has come to a complete stop and must line up orderly to ensure safety in getting on or off the bus;
- 7. Must enter or leave the bus only at the front door, except in cases of emergency, after the bus has come to a complete stop;
- 8. Must cross the highway in the proper manner at least 10 feet in front of the bus so that the driver can observe all students;
- 9. Must keep all parts of the body inside the bus windows at all times;
- 10. Must not throw objects inside or outside the bus at any time;
- 11. Must not use profane or objectionable language or engage in any other objectionable conduct such as pushing, fighting, etc. at any time;
- 12. Must not damage or deface the bus or bus equipment and must be responsible for the cost of any such damage;
- 13. Must not display any sharp instrument or bring any type of weapon on the school bus;
- 14. Must not eat, drink, or use tobacco or illegal substances on the bus;
- 15. Must not bring anything in a glass container such as specimens of dead or live animals on the bus; and
- 16. Must not bring band instruments which may interfere with the seating and safety of others on the bus.

BUS DISCIPLINE PLAN

1st offense - warning

2nd offense - disciplinary action

3rd offense - 1 day bus suspension

4th offense - 2 day bus suspension

5th offense - 3 day bus suspension

6th offense - 5 day bus suspension

Repeated offenses - 10 day suspension or expulsion

NOTE: *Prekindergarten and kindergarten* students will not be left at a bus stop if a parent/guardian or designated adult from the student's emergency pick-up list is not present. A babysitter twelve (12) years of age or older may be used as a pick-up designee if the parent has issued a letter to the school stating that the babysitter is allowed to make the pick-up. If these arrangements are not made and there is no person present to pick up the child from the bus stop then the student will be taken back to the school. The first offense will be a warning to the parent/guardian. The second offense (return to school with the child) will be a suspension from the bus for three (3) days and a warning that the next offense will be a suspension from the bus for the remainder of the semester. Upon the 3rd offense the child will not be allowed to ride the bus for the rest of the semester.

TRANSPORTATION CHANGES

Any special after-school arrangements (special pick-up, riding a different bus, riding the same bus but getting off at a different stop, etc.) must be requested by a note from the parent/guardian. This note should be presented to the school office early in the day and include a phone number where the parent may be reached or normal afternoon routines will be followed. No phone calls will be accepted.

ABSOLUTELY NO TRANSPORTATION CHANGES WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER 2:25 P.M.

Discipline:

BULLYING/HARASSMENT

Our Code of Student Conduct states that bullying, harassment and/or hazing will not be tolerated. All incidents of possible threats, signs or discussions of weapons, signs of gang activity, inappropriate use of technology, or the conditions that might invite or

encourage violence MUST be reported to an adult. This may also include, but not be limited to, teasing, name calling, intimidation or spreading of rumors. Informational link on the district website is http://www.stopbullying.gov/. Bullying Hotline 1-800-273-8255.

DISCIPLINE POLICY

A well-organized classroom and well-behaved students are necessary for a good learning environment. The rules by which students are governed benefit all concerned. Discipline of a minor nature is generally dealt with between the student and teacher. More serious disciplinary actions, or habitual misbehavior, will be handled by the principal/designee. The Time Out Program is an immediate alternative for students who need to reflect on good behavior and work habits while proving they are capable of returning to the classroom. Student rights, responsibilities and discipline guidelines are further defined in the *Code of Student Conduct for Sumter County Public Schools*.

It is important that the school staff and leaders in the home work together to resolve behavior problems. When it becomes necessary to contact the home concerning a student's behavior, a conduct report will be given to the student and/or will be mailed. Parents/guardians should discuss the conduct report with the child and take action to correct the behavior. For further information, it is always helpful to contact your child's teacher. Solutions can often be reached when communication and cooperation exist between the home and the school.

The Sumter County Code of Student Conduct has been revised for the 2021-22 school year as required by state regulations. Please read and discuss the Code of Student Conduct with your child.

WEAPONS

Knives, guns (real or toy), dangerous instruments, pepper gas, bullets, shotgun shells and items or hazardous materials that could be used as weapons to threaten, injure or disable an adult or another student are not permitted at school.

TOBACCO POLICY

No student, regardless of age, will be allowed to use tobacco or tobacco products (such as, but not limited to, cigarettes, chew, and dip) while on campus. Bringing or using tobacco products at school will result in disciplinary action and legal monetary fines.

GUM AT SCHOOL

Gum at school can cause damage and require clean-up work. Gum is not permitted on the school grounds or in the classrooms. An exception may be made at a school-sponsored party where organized clean-up duty is overseen by the teacher.

HAZING

The Sumter County School Board will not tolerate hazing. Hazing means any action or situation that endangers the mental or physical health or safety of a student at a school with any of grades six (6) through twelve (12) for purposes of initiation or admission into or affiliation with any school-sanctioned organization. It includes, but is not limited to: (a) pressuring, coercing, or forcing a student to participate in illegal or dangerous behavior, or (b) any brutality or a physical nature, such as whipping, beating, branding, or exposure to the elements.

STUDENT SEARCHES

For the health and safety of staff and students, the school reserves the right to conduct unannounced searches of school property such as desks, lockers, and their contents when reasonable suspicion or probable cause exists.

TOBACCO

It is unlawful for students to possess tobacco on school grounds.

TRADES OR SALES

Trading, buying, giving away or selling among or between students is not permitted. The trading of Sunshine Dollars or sharing of Sunshine Dollars is not permitted for any reason.

THREATS & INTIMIDATIONS

All students are forewarned that Webster Elementary School and the Sumter County School system are unwilling to tolerate threats by any students. Making threats to other students, adults or staff members will result in serious consequences to the student making the threat – including out-of-school suspension (OSS).

WEAPONS BANNED FROM SCHOOL

Knives, guns, dangerous instruments, pepper gas, and items that could be used as weapons to threaten, injure or disable an adult or another student are not permitted at school. Possession or use of any of these will result in out-of-school suspension. Responsible adults should check children's belongings before students depart for school to ensure unsafe items are not brought on buses or onto school grounds.

STUDENT BEHAVIOR EXPECTATIONS

POSITIVE BEHAVIOR SUPPORT (PBS) - Our character development and our school-wide Positive Behavior Support (PBS) Program give children the opportunity to practice good behavior while making positive choices to promote a safe and orderly environment. Appropriate student behavior is a shared responsibility which can be accomplished when teachers, students, parents, and the community work together to meet the social and emotional needs of children. Each morning, as part of our PBS program, students recite the Webster Elementary **SHINES** Pledge:

Show respect
Have a positive attitude
Inspire others
Nurture my education
Endeavor to do my best
Strive for safety

We believe that all children can shine through the high expectations we hold for them and the good choices that they make. Please help us to encourage your child to be the best they can be. Students of the month are recognized at school-wide assemblies. Parents of those students being recognized are welcome to attend the assembly.

PBS Store: The PBS Store will be open on designated days so that students may purchase items with Sunshine Dollars they have earned for positive behavior.

Dress Cade:

Students should strive for neatness and good grooming. They must wear clothing appropriate for an elementary school setting. Garments or grooming styles which may be a distraction, disruptive, dangerous or offensive are not allowed on campus. Midriff or halter-tops, tops with spaghetti straps, muscle shirts and baggy shorts or pants worn without a belt are unacceptable. Undergarments must be covered at all times.

TRENCH COATS

Trench coats are not allowed to be worn on campus.

HATS

Hats and other headgear, including hoods pulled up on sweat shirts, are not allowed except in cases of extreme cold weather and during PE.

PIERCINGS

No piercings except ear piercings will be allowed. Nose piercings, lip piercings, tongue piercings, etc. are not to be worn.

Enrollment:

CONTACT INFORMATION OR CHANGES IN ADDRESS

The school cannot contact parents to communicate important information without accurate contact information. Please notify the school of changes in address, phone number, and/or email in writing or by going to https://www.sumter.k12.fl.us/domain/125 and selecting "Skyward Family Access" to make changes.

ENTRANCE TO SCHOOL

Florida law requires kindergarten children to be 5 years old by September 1 of the year they enter school. Kindergarten is mandatory, and children must successfully complete kindergarten BEFORE first grade. Enrollment requires verification of immunization; a physical examination; and a birth certificate. To enter first grade a child must be six (6) years of age on or before September 1 of the school year and must have successfully completed kindergarten in a public or private school from which the district accepts transfer of credit. A child must not enter first grade without successfully completing kindergarten.

STUDENT TRANSFER PROCESS

Thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of each semester, the district will post a list of the out-of-field teachers on the district website. A parent whose student is assigned an out-of-field teacher may request that his or her child be transferred to an in-field classroom within the school and grade in which the student is currently enrolled. Any parent may request his or her child to be transferred to another classroom teacher once during a school year. The request must be made in writing and given to the school principal. The parent does not have the right to select the specific classroom teacher. These requests may not put a classroom over the state mandated class size. The principal must approve or deny the transfer within two weeks after receiving the request. If the request is denied, the principal must notify the parent and specify the reasons for denial.

WITHDRAWAL FROM SCHOOL

Parents/guardians should notify office personnel and the teacher as soon as possible concerning withdrawal of a child from school. The notification should include the last day of attendance and the school to which the child is being transferred. Before a withdrawal is completed all school property must be returned, and all charges must be paid.

Field Trips:

FIELD TRIPS

Occasionally students may participate in class field trips to various points of interest within walking distance of the school or within a day's bus ride to and from a specific destination. Field trips are a privilege earned by positive academic performance and behavior. Permission slips signed by the parent/guardian must be on file at the school for a child to accompany his/her class on a field trip. Any person wishing to be a field trip chaperone MUST be a district approved volunteer. (Volunteer approval requires minimum of thirty (30) days for approval.)

Food Service:

BREAKFAST and LUNCH PURCHASES

Sumter County Schools qualify for the National Lunch Program. Students may eat breakfast and lunch each day for FREE.

CAFETERIA RULES

- 1. Stand in line quietly.
- 2. Eat and touch ONLY your food.
- 3. After eating, you may talk quietly to your neighbors.
- 4. Stay in your seat at all times.

- 5. Raise your hand for help.
- 6. Clean up around your table.
- 7. Recycle all trash.

STUDENT LUNCH WITH GUESTS

Webster Elementary welcomes guests on our campus. At times, grandparents, family members and friends would like to eat lunch with a student on campus. Unfortunately, adults on the emergency contact list will not automatically be allowed to eat with your child. Please be advised that you, as the child's parent, must send a note to the school office each date and time you wish to allow that person to eat with your child. This note must include the child's name and the name of the adult that you wish to eat lunch with your child. The note should be turned in to the child's teacher the morning of the lunch visit. A note must be submitted for EVERY lunch guest occurrence. Phone calls will not be accepted.

HEALTHY SCHOOLS/HEALTHY SNACKS

As part of our *Healthy Schools* expectations set by the state, we encourage parents/guardians and students to further healthy habits and lifestyles by bringing only healthy snacks to school events and celebrations. Please contact the school office for more information about *Healthy Schools*.

Grades:

AVID

Webster Elementary is proud to be an Advancement via Individual Determination (AVID) School. The mission of AVID is to close the achievement gap by preparing all students for college readiness and success in a global society. All classes will integrate AVID Writing, Inquiry, Collaboration, Organization and Reading (WICOR) strategies into student instruction. Other AVID strategies involving student organization and behavior management will also be implemented to aid in developing a congruent school-wide culture.

GRADING SYSTEM

The grading scale below is used for elementary school students. It is expected that grades be updated weekly and available to parents no later than Friday of each week. Grades are available online using the Skyward system.

A 90-100% Outstanding Progress
B 80-89% Above Average Progress
C 70-79% Adequate Progress
D 60-69% Unacceptable Progress
F 50-59% Failure

E= Excellent, S=Satisfactory, N= Needs Improvement, U=Unsatisfactory



HEALTH PROBLEMS

If your child has any unusual health problems such as free bleeding, excessive nose bleeds, convulsions from high temperature, allergic reactions to insect bites, heart problems, seizures, breathing problems, etc., please notify personnel upon your child's entrance to school. If made aware of health concerns, school personnel will be better equipped to address situations as they arise. Students need to be fever free for twenty-four (24) ours before returning to school.

MEDICATION: PRESCRIPTION and OVER THE COUNTER

Medical treatment is the responsibility of the parent/guardian and the family physician. State law does not allow school personnel to administer medication of any type without following specific guidelines. Under advice of your family physician, plan a schedule of giving medication before or after school hours when possible. Medication can be given at school only when the school is provided written authorization from the doctor. To meet this requirement, the original prescription container indicating dosage

administration must be brought to school by the parent. Parents of students who require medication during the school day must provide the school with an order from a <u>licensed health care provider (PP-SR-125)</u> and deliver the medication to the school in the original unaltered pharmacy-labeled container. Over-the-counter medication shall be delivered in an unopened container. No medication will be administered without proper consent/permission from the parent/guardian (PP-SR-035). All medication is administered by the school health staff or other trained staff. It is against school and district policy for students to have or transport medication (without proper authorization on file at the school) and may lead to disciplinary measures. Physician authorization is required for student use of cough drops, sunscreen, and over the counter medications – Including food supplements and herbal remedies. Use, possession or distribution of these is not permitted at school. If a child is taking any medication, it is important that the school be notified. It is also important that the school is made aware of any medical conditions that may prohibit a child from participating in normal school activities.

Homebound Services:

Homebound services provide instruction to students unable to attend school because of temporary physical or mental disability. Once criterion are met, services are available to students who will be absent from school fifteen days or more. Notification of extended absences should be communicated to the school office prior to the absence or when the absence begins to allow time for homebound services to be arranged.

Homework:

Homework will be given on an increasing basis as students advance in school. It is an integral part of the total academic program. It is helpful to have an adult oversee completion of homework assignments. Providing time and a quiet place for study in the home are also important.

Honor Roll:

Students in Grades 3, 4, 5 who are working at or above grade level and who are earning all "A's" or all "A's" and "B's" are eligible for honor roll status.

Honors' Breakfast:

Students in 5th grade who have an overall GPA of 3.0 for their 4th grade year and the first semester of their 5th grade year, with **NO GRADE BELOW A "C"** will be honored at the end of the year Fifth Grade Honors Breakfast.

Media Center:

A wide selection of reading and research material is available through the media center. The checkout period is two weeks, with the ability to renew the book. Students are taught proper care of books and are charged for damaging or losing books.

Moment of Silence:

In accordance with Florida Legislature and SB 529, our school will observe a moment of silence each day for self-reflection. We ask that parents/guardians make suggestions to his/her child as to the best use of this time.

Parents:

COMMUNITY EDUCATION

Webster Elementary School is committed to working with the Sumter County Adult and Community Education Program. Please contact that school at 793-5719 for information about adult literacy, credit classes for graduation, GED review, driver's license, first aid, health, vocational training to include computer and nursing, birth/child care training and/or offerings by special request.

PARENT CONFERENCES

Conferences are valuable to communicate a child's progress. Please feel free to contact the office to arrange a conference with your child's teacher. Conferences are best when scheduled during teacher planning times or before/after school. WES also offers parent conference nights during the fall.

PTO

The purpose of the Webster Elementary School Parent Teacher Organization is to promote the welfare of our students. Parents/guardians and immediate family members are encouraged to join and participate in this worthwhile organization.

Pledge Reciting Policy:

A student may be excused from instruction and/or reciting the pledge of allegiance, including standing and placing the right hand over his or her heart when his/her parent(s), as defined by Florida Statutes, files a written request with the school principal.

Physical Education:

A parent note may excuse a child from physical education activities due to illness or injury. Each parent note regarding physical education is considered valid for three (3) days. After three (3) days, a doctor's note will be required to continue this practice.

<u>Safety</u>

BADGES

All students and staff will be issued ID cards with a lanyard. The ID cards must be worn daily and will be used when entering and exiting school provided transportation, in the cafeteria, and in the media center. Per state law, mental health information will be added to the back of all student ID badges. This information includes the telephone number for the national or statewide crisis and suicide hotlines. Students will be issued one badge, and if necessary, one replacement badge. Additional badges will cost \$3.00.

CUSTODY OF STUDENTS

School personnel release students only to natural parents, guardians, or their designees unless there is a copy on file of a Florida court order granting custody to one parent or the other, or a third party. When the school is not familiar with the person, proper identification must be presented for release of students.

EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBERS

With the school caring for your child during the day, it is essential to know where you can be reached by telephone. It is important to supply the school with regular and alternate telephone numbers (neighbors, relatives, work) so that you can be contacted at any time in case of an emergency. Should numbers change, please advise the school promptly or make immediate changes in the system by going to https://www.sumter.k12.fl.us/domain/125 and selecting "Skyward Family Access".

FORTIFYFL- SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY REPORTING APP

FORTIFYFL is a suspicious activity reporting tool that allows students, teachers, parents, and community members to instantly relay information for possible crimes, threats, and unsafe situations to appropriate law enforcement agencies and school officials. This app will be installed on all school-issued technology devices in addition to the website https://getfortifyfl.com/ being bookmarked. Parents are encouraged to install this application on all personal devices.

MANAGEMENT PLAN

A management plan is filed in the school office regarding asbestos surveys and reports on the school plant. This plan is available to the public upon request.

STUDENT PUBLICITY

Webster Elementary School may, on occasion, publish children's work or pictures in video, photographic or Internet formats identified by name of the creator. Students may be assigned an e-mail account at school. They may also have pictures/full names published in the newspaper. All would be for educational, information and recognition purposes. Samples include student work produced on the web page, honor roll listings and photographs for the newspaper or yearbook. Please submit a letter to the school if you do not want your child to participate.

SUPERVISION

Supervision by school personnel will be limited to thirty (30) minutes before and thirty (30) minutes after school or school activity.

VISITORS

Anyone wishing to visit a teacher or enter a classroom is required to present proper identification, sign in, and obtain a visitor's pass from the office. Students from other schools or friends of a student are not allowed to visit during the school day.

Student Property:

A student is not allowed to bring valuable items or large amounts of money to school. The school cannot be responsible for their loss or disappearance. Games, gadgets, fidget spinners, electronic devices, pets, and toys are not allowed in school without prior approval of your child's teacher. Cell phones are permitted but must be off and placed out of sight.

Student Records:

Student records are for the educational benefit of the student. Information is recorded, maintained and safeguarded in the best, educational interest of each student. In connection with enrollment in another school, emergency situations, application for financial aid, research, a State Statute, an accrediting organization, and a lawfully-issued subpoena, personally identifiable information may be disclosed, transferred, or released without prior consent of the parent/guardian of a student.

Sumter County Schools Non-Discrimination Statement:

Sumter County Schools does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, gender, age, disability or marital status in its educational programs, services, or activities, or in its hiring or employment practices. The district also provides equal access to its facilities to the Boy Scouts and other patriotic youth groups, as required by the Boys Scouts of America Equal Access Act. Questions, complaints, or requests for additional information regarding discrimination or harassment may be sent to:

- Eileen Goodson, Director of Student Services and Testing, Equity Coordinator
 - Phone Number: 352-793-2315 X 50212
- Lisa Whitman, Senior Director of Human Resources, Civil Rights Protection
 - Phone Number: 352-793-2315 X 50251
- Debbie Moffitt, Assistant Superintendent
 - Phone Number: 352-793-2315 X 50260
- The Sumter County School Board, 2680 W CR 476, Bushnell, FL 33513

Textbooks:

A current, state-adopted textbook or textbook in individual sheet format as well as other instructional materials are provided as a primary means of instruction for each student in reading, mathematics, language arts, science and social studies. Students are responsible for proper care of school textbooks/materials and must reimburse the school for their loss or damage.

Volunteers:

The school promotes the use of volunteers. Parents/guardians, senior citizens and others are encouraged to become part of our volunteer program. Under a teacher's supervision, volunteers may work with students in small groups, listen to children read, complete clerical tasks, supervise on field trips and engage in many other rewarding activities. If interested in becoming a school volunteer, please complete an online volunteer application. Applicants must be approved by the Sumter County School Board before he/she can volunteer. Please be advised the approval for volunteer applications may take 3-4 weeks. Additionally, to be eligible to chaperone fieldtrips, volunteers must have accrued 3 hours of volunteer time at our school.

Access to Information

There are many ways to access school-wide information at Webster Elementary School.

Facebook

Would you like to be kept informed on Facebook? Like our "Webster Elementary School" and "Webster Elementary School PTO" page. You DO NOT have to be a PTO member to like the PTO page.

Website

You can always check out our school calendar, view lunch menus, and access teacher pages on our school website. https://bit.ly/3eCyFhw

If accessing this site through a mobile device, click view full site in the bottom left corner, scroll down for "Latest News". Then use the menu (top right) to navigate through the site.

<u>Skyward</u>

Would you like to view your child's grades online or on your phone? Use Skyward Family Access. Use the following link to access from a computer.

https://student.sumter.k12.fl.us/scripts/wsisa.dll/WService=wsEAplus/fwemnu01.w

You can get the Skyward app for your phone also. You will need to know your child's username and password (used daily in school for AR, your child will know this info). You can sign up to have a daily or weekly email sent to you regarding grades.

Parent Receipt and Email Permission Slip

(Please complete this page and return to your child's teacher)

Parent Receipt	
I,, have received the outlined in the handbook.	he 2020-21 WES Student Handbook and understand the information
Parent signature:	_
Email Permission Slip	
I give the teachers and staff of WES permission to email	l me concerning my child.
Child's name:	
Parent signature:	
Parent's email address:	_
Teacher's email address:	@sumter.k12.fl.us

Please send concerns, questions, etc. anytime. We try to read email at least once a day and will get back to you as soon as possible. Your email address will not be given to any individual or student. *Please do not send, or forward, any email communications except those concerning your child.*